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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The structure commonly referred to as "Stone Bridge" is actually a
causeway nearly a quarter mile long across a narrow swampy neck between
Hart Lake and Crump Lake in the Warner Lakes chain near Lakeview in Ore-
gon's southrcentral high desert country. Wide enough to accommodate a
horse-~drawn wagon, it is commonly thought to be the causeway built by the
U. S. Army between March 16 and July 24, 1867, during a period of Indian
unrest in the area. About forty men were involved in the construction.

Construction was accomplished by the simple method of hauling bould-
ers from nearby Hart Mountain and dumping them into the swamp. The ex—
tensive length of the causeway and the poor soil bearing conditions would
have made this an extensive construction project in an area yet unsettled
by white men. The causeway was probably several feet above the Narrows
wvater level when it was built, but the stones have since sunk into the
muddy bottom making the causeway difficult to find, as it is inundated most
of the time. After it was abandoned by the Army when it left the area in
1874, Stone Bridge was means by which the Oregon Central Military Wagon
Road crossed the Warner Lakes chain, and after the Military Road fell into
disuse, it was used for many years as a cattle crossing by local ranchers.
It can still be used for a crossing today at times when the Narrows water
level is very low, Though inundated most of the time, its loeation is
marked by the absence of swamp vegitation. In 1971, Troop 95, Boy Scouts
of America, Lakeview, Oregon, erected a marker and constructed a stone
path at the east end of the bridge, where construction was originally be-
gun,

Traces of the old Oregon Central Military Wagon Road are still in
evidence today. A particularly identifiable segment extends several miles
west from the Stone Bridge as wheel tracks winding across the stoney sage-—
brush terrain and used by ranchers and occasional recreationalists, This
segment is probably in as good a condition today as when the road was com-
pleted in 1872, because the "“road" was little more than a perfunctory track
across the vast desert of central Oregon, It was poorly maintained and
was never much used,

The nominated segment of the Oregon Central Military Wagon Road is on
public land managed by the Bureau of Land Management. The State of Oregon
claims the Stone Bridge site through riparian right.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Stone Bridge in Lake County jis thought to be the first structure
built by white men in the southrcentral part of Oregon, which due to the
high desert terrain, harsh climate, and the presence of marauding North—
ern Piute and Modoc Indians, was not settled until the 1870s, a genera~
tion later than the westerm portion of the state had been settled.

Early in 1866, the 14th Infantry Regiment from Fort Boise in Idaho
Territory was ordered to establish a new post near Honey Creek several
miles west of the Warner Lakes in south-central Oregon, at a site which
had been previously selected by a scouting party from Fort Vancouver in
Washington Territory. Arriving from the east by way of Fort Harmey in
eastern Oregon in late summer, the soldiers found that they were unable
to penetrate the chain of lakes and swamps known as Warner's Lakes with
their wagons and equipment. Therefore, they established a camp about
seven miles east of the lakes, Pollowing several skirmishes with the
Indians fn September and October, the troops spent a difficult winter
in the ney camp. It has been reported that on several nights the entire
company had to march #n a cirele on the parade ground lest they freeze
to death; one sergeant hecame lost in a blizzard and died.

The 14th Infantry was replaced by the 23rd Infantry early in 1867.
General George Crook visited.Camp Warner in late February and concurred
in the decision that the barrier formed by Warner Lakes seriously impeded
operations against the Indians and that the camp would be more advantage—
ously locatéd at the site originally selected on the other side. To this
end on March 15, 1867, Capt. James Henton and 40 men were ordered “to
the crossing of Warner's Lakes for the purpose of building a bridge across
said lake." Another party was dispatched on May 31 to start construction
of the new camp on the west side, The bridge across the lakes are re—
ported completed by July 24, TIn addition to giving the soldiers greater
flexihility #n thelr operations against the Indians, the bridge connected
Camp Warner with Fort Harney and other military establishments to the
east.

Indfan trouble was alleviated in the area within two years when a
major band was trapped at Donner und Blitzen in the Steens Mountains in

1868~69, a treaty was signed and Camp Warner was abandoned in 1874.
(continued)
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Leslie Shaw, “Crook Seyers Warner Valley Gordian Knott," Lake County
Examiner (Lakeview, Oregon), July 20, 1967, p. 2.

Lake County Examiner) 1968 and 1970.
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'STONE BRIDGE AND THE OREGON CENTRAL MILITARY WAGON ROAD (CONTINUED)

2. Location--Legal Description of Property
Stone Bridge and the Oregon Central Military Wagon Road segment are

located in the N 1/2 Sec. 24, T. 37S., R. 24E. of the Willamette Meridian,
Lake County, Oregon.

4. Owner of Property

Stone Bridge: State of Oregon (claimed through riparian right).

Oregon Central Military Wagon Road: U. S. Department of the Interior.

5. Location of Legal Description

Stone Bridge: Division of State Lands, 502 Winter Street, NE, Salem,
Oregon 97301. (Code: 41).

Oregon Central Military Wagon Road: Bureau of Land Management,
Lakeview District, 357 North L Street, Lakeview, Oregon 97630. (Code: 41).

8. Significance

The Oregon Central Military Wagon Road was not built by the military,
but was a private venture under a Federal policy of granting lands for the
construction of "military" wagon roads. There were five such roads built
in Oregon of which the Oregon Central Military Wagon Road was the first and
largest. Oregon is the only state in which these roads were built outside
the Midwest, the others being in Indiana, Ohio, Wisconsin, and Michigan.

The Oregon Central Military Wagon Road was chiefly promoted by B. J.
Pengra of Eugene. The proposed route was from Eugene City at the south end
of the Willamette Valley, by way of the Willamette Pass over the Cascades
and Goose Lake Valley in south—central Oregon to the Nevada Territory line.
From there he and other Eugene backers planned an extension to Lassen Meadows
Nevada Territory, to commect with the Central Pacific Railroad, and they an-
ticipated eventual construction of an Oregon Branch Pacific Railroad to
Eugene by this route. By the time construction was authorized by Congress
in July, 1864, however, the eastern terminus was changed from the Nevada
Territory line to the Idaho Territory line where the road would connect with
the newly discovered mines in the Silver City area. The road (continued)
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STONE BRIDGE AND THE OREGON CENTRAL MILITARY WAGON ROAD (CONTINUED)

8. Significance (cont.)

was to be completed in five years, but the completion date was eventually
extended to 1872, The land grant was for alternate odd-numbered sections
in a band three sections wide on each side of the road. The eventual total
of land patented to the builders was 875,196 acres. The builders claimed
to have spent $125,000 building the road, but a government investigator
later estimated $24,000 was more accurate. The Oregon Central Military
Wagon Road is often associated with cries of "land grab" and "hoax." Accord-
ing to reports, a fair wagon road extended from Eugene to the Cascade sum-
mit, but from there eastward it was rudimentary. The grant lands were sold
in 1876 for $125,000.

There is another causeway bridge in the vicinity of Stone Bridge, the
origin of which is a mystery. Known as Pack Horse Bridge, few have actually
seen it. Mr. Henry O'Keeffee, a local rancher, saw it about ten years ago
during a period of very low water. He had learned of its existence from
old-timers in the area. It is about one mile south of Stone Bridge and
crosses the only island in the Narrows. As Mr. O'Keeffee remembers, it
crosses the northern end of the island. It is only about three or four
feet wide and is very difficult to find. Stones marking the approaches are
covered with grasses. Pack Horse Bridge is associated with the Riffle trail,
which is used for cattle. It is not known who bujlt it or why. It is doubt-
ful that the Indians built it for the Modoc and Piute tribes are not recog-
nized as builders, and there is no record of extended habitation of suf-
ficient numbers of white men for such an undertaking before the Army built
Stone Bridge. It is not reasonable that anyone would go to such effort
later with the broader and higher Stone Bridge only a mile away. It may be
that Pack Horse Bridge was a temporary crossing suggested in Army records
before Stone Bridge was built, or that Pack Horse Bridge is actually the
one built by the Army and Stone Bridge was built later in connection with
the Military Road.
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